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Mr. [REDACTED]
April 11, 2003

[REDACTED]

[REDACTED]

                                                                                               RE:  MV01003890
                                                                                           Unnamed ([REDACTED])
                                                                                           Mr. [REDACTED]
                                                                                           Dismissed

Dear Mr. [REDACTED]:

The Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office, Arlington, Virginia, has forwarded the file in Civil Penalty Case MV01003890, which includes your appeal as owner of the recreational vessel [REDACTED].  The appeal is from the action of the Hearing Officer in assessing a $200.00 penalty for the following violations:

	Law/Regulation
	Nature of Violation
	Assessed Penalty

	33 USC 2033 (Rule 33)
	Failure to have some means of making an efficient sound signal for vessel less than 12 meters in length.
	$50.00

	33 CFR 173.21(a)(1)
	Use of a vessel without a valid Certificate of Number or temporary certificate on board.
	$50.00

	33 CFR 175.15(a)
	No person may use a recreational vessel unless at least on Type I, II, or III PFD is on board for each person.
	$100.00


The violations were observed on May 11, 2001, when Coast Guard boarding officers boarded the [REDACTED] while it was underway in Galents Channel near Beaufort, North Carolina.  

On appeal, you contend that you are not the appropriate party to be charged with the violations.  To that end, you assert that you “turned this vessel over to [REDACTED] to sell” in March of 2001 and that, at that time, you “gave…Mr. [REDACTED] permission to demonstrate the boat to potential buyers.”  You further contend that, on the evening of the boarding, Mr. [REDACTED], of the Coast Guard, called you and inquired as to whether you were the owner of the vessel and whether you had given Mr. [REDACTED] permission to use the vessel.  You “confirmed” that you were the owner and, upon inquiring “if anything was wrong,” Mr. [REDACTED] told you that nothing was.  Finally, you contend that when you first learned of the violations in February of 2002, you contacted Mr. [REDACTED] who informed you that he would resolve the matter.  Although you conclude that “[t]he penalty MV01003890 belongs to Mr. [REDACTED], not…[you],” you provided a copy of the vessel’s registration receipt to prove that the vessel was registered at the time of the boarding.  Your appeal is granted for the reasons discussed below.  

The record indicates that, after the Hearing Officer issued his Final Decision on June 26, 2002, you submitted your letter of appeal, noting that you were not the operator of the vessel at the time of the boarding.  In a memorandum dated August 29, 2002, Chief Warrant Officer [REDACTED] of Commander, Atlantic Area indicated that, upon discussing the case with the boarding officer, “it appear[ed] that the Owner/Operator block [of the boarding report] was incorrectly filled in.”  CWO [REDACTED] stated that because you supplied the registration and were not onboard the vessel you “cannot be held accountable” for the violation of 33 CFR 173.21(a)(1).  In addition, CWO [REDACTED] noted that you “also cannot be held accountable for the PFD charge.”  He concluded his rebuttal comments by requesting that “the charges be dropped and the Case Closed with no penalty.”  I agree with his conclusions.

The statutory authority for the assessment of a civil penalty for a violation of 33 USC 2033(b) (Rule 33) is at 33 USC 2072(a).  33 USC 2072 makes clear that only the operator of a vessel is liable for a violation of the statute, specifically noting that “[w]hoever operates a vessel in violation of this chapter, or of any regulation thereunder…is liable” for a civil penalty.  In the same vein, 33 CFR 173.21(a)(1) and 33 CFR 175.15(a) both state that no person may “use” a vessel in violation of the requirements stated therein.  The definition sections of Parts 173 and 175 make clear that the term “use” “means operate, navigate, or employ.”  See 33 CFR 173.3(i) and 33 CFR 175.3.  Therefore, because you were not the operator of the vessel on the day of the boarding, I find that you are not an appropriate party to be charged with the violations and will dismiss the penalties assessed by the Hearing Officer.

In accordance with the regulations governing civil penalty proceedings, 33 CFR 1.07, this decision constitutes final agency action.  

  
                                                             Sincerely,


                                                              //S//


david j. kantor

Deputy Chief,

Office of Maritime and International Law 

By direction of the Commandant

Copy:  Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Hearing Office 
            Commanding Officer, Coast Guard Finance Center 
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